
MINUTES OF MEETING OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF 
NORTH AUSTIN MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT NO. 1 

THE STATE OF TEXAS § 
§ 

COUNTIES OF TRAVIS § 
AND WILLIAMSON § 

APRIL 15, 2015 

A regular meeting of the Board of Directors of North Austin Municipal Utility 
District No. 1, open to the public, was held on April 15, 2015, at the Rattan Creek 
Community Center, 7617 Elkhorn Mountain Trail, Austin, Texas, pursuant to notice duly 
given in accordance with law. A copy of the Certificate of Posting of said Notice is attached 
hereto as Exhibit "A". 

The roll was called of the members of the Board, to-wit: 

Alan McNeil 
Donald G. Conklin 
Jo Jones 
Keith Collins 
Kim Green 

President 
Vice President 
Secretary 
Treasurer 
Assistant Secretary /Treasurer 

and all of said Directors were present, except for Director McNeil, thus constituting a 
quorum. Also in attendance at the meeting were Gary Spoonts with Crossroads Utility 
Services; Mary Bott with Bott & Douthitt, P.L.L.C.; David Malish with Murfee Engineering 
Co., Inc.; Richard Fadal with TexaScapes; Bill Burke with Clearwater Management; Kevin 
Flahive with Armbrust & Brown, PLLC; Renee Curfman, a resident of the District and 
President of the Rattan Creek Neighborhood Association; Meghan Trout, a resident of the 
District; Stephanie Hardy, a representative of the Trinity Swim Team; a number of Boy 
Scouts; and Heather Lefebvre, the Store Director of the HEB located at Spicewood Springs 
Road and Hwy 183. 

I 

Director Conklin called the meeting to order at 6:12 p.m. and stated that the Board 
would first receive citizen communications. Ms. Trout stated she had two sons, ages 8 and 
9, who were members of the Hurricane Swim Team and the Trinity Swim Team. She 
discussed with the Board the Hurricane Swim Team's need for use of the pool beyond the 
three month time period agreed to in the past, as well as the Trinity Swim Team's need for 
use of the pool. She stated that she and Ms. Hardy, a representative of the Trinity Swim 
Team, had met with RCNA representatives last month to discuss community service as a 
component of an agreement with the District for use of the pool. Director Conklin asked if 
a request to use the pool had been submitted to the District by the Trinity Swim Team. 
Ms. Hardy stated that a request had not yet been submitted. Director Conklin and Mr. 
Burke discussed the District's receipt of six to seven requests per year from swim teams 
regarding use of the pool. Director Conklin stated the Board has not considered allowing 
more swim teams to use the pool in the past, but the Board would do so in connection with 
the budget process over the summer. Ms. Hardy stated that, unlike other swim teams, her 
team was small, comprised of approximately 15 children. Ms. Curfman stated she 

{W0653815.2} - 1 - April 15, 2015 - Regular Meeting 
North Austin M.U.D. No. 1 



appreciated the Trinity Swim Team bringing their request to the RCNA and volunteering to 
perform community service. She asked the Board to consider the request for use of the 
pool. Director Conklin asked how many of the children on the Trinity Swim Team were 
residents of the District. Ms. Hardy responded that three of the 15 children on the team 
were residents of the District. After discussion of the Board's past position regarding use 
of the pool by swim teams comprised primarily of non-residents of the District, Director 
Conklin recognized Ms. Curfman. She stated the crawfish boil would occur on April 25. 
Ms. Curfman stated she was expecting approximately 150 people at the event and noted 
that preparations for the event had been completed, cleanup would occur after the event, 
and 500 pounds of crawfish and 100 pounds of sausage would be served. She then stated 
that the swim party would occur on May 23. Ms. Curfman then discussed with the Board a 
team of individuals she had formed to publish the RCNA newsletter. She apologized for 
communication breakdowns in the past and thanked the Board for its support. Ms. 
Curfman stated the next issue would be published in June. Director Conklin then 
addressed the Boy Scouts in attendance. The Boy Scouts stated they were attending the 
Board meeting in connection with earning citizenship in the community merit badges. 

At 6:30 p.m., Director Conklin stated the Board would convene in executive session 
pursuant to Texas Government Code Section 55i.071 to receive legal advice from its 
attorney. At 7:03 p.m., the Board reconvened in open session. Director Conklin stated the 
Board took no action during executive session. 

Director Conklin then stated that additional citizen communications would be 
received. He addressed Ms. Lefebvre. She stated HEB would like to use the Rattan Creek 
Park facilities, including the grounds, pavilion, pool, and tennis and volleyball courts, for 
an event on June 25 from 9:00 a.m. until 5:00 p.m. Director Green stated the Hurricane 
Swim Team would be using the pool until 11:00 a.m. that morning. Ms. Lefebvre stated 
use of the pool after 11:00 a.m. would be fine. She added that the event would be 
sponsored by Ms. Carol Redman, a resident of the District. The Board discussed HEB's use 
of the park for this event in past years. Mr. Burke stated there were no problems incurred 
with the event in past years. Director Green asked if any alcohol would be provided at the 
event, and Ms. Lefebvre stated that there would not be any alcohol. The Board determined 
that the request for use of the park facilities should be granted upon receipt. 

The Board next considered approval of the March 16 and March 18 minutes. 
Director Jones stated she had reviewed her notes from the March 16 work session and 
updated the minutes to properly reflect the terms of the proposed Management Services 
Agreement with Crossroads Utility Services, L.L.C. She stated that the March 16 minutes, 
as presented, were correct. Upon motion by Director Collins and second by Director 
Conklin, the Board unanimously approved the March 16 minutes as presented. Upon 
motion by Director Conklin and second by Director Jones, the Board unanimously 
approved the March 18 minutes as presented. 

Director Conklin stated the Board would then receive the park and landscape report, 
including proposals, a copy of which is attached as Exhibit "B". Mr. Fadal stated 
everything looked good and there were no major issues. He stated spot treating for ants 
had been conducted and would be again prior to Rattanfest. Mr. Fadal stated the Oaks 
would stop dropping their leaves in the next couple of weeks. He discussed with the Board 

{W0653815.2} - 2 - April 15, 2015 - Regular Meeting 
North Austin M.U.D. No. 1 



l 

the planned site visit to the District's parks and greenbelts with the subcommittee and 
stated he would send out an email to the subcommittee to schedule the site visit. Director 
Green stated Rattan Creek Park looked beautiful during the Easter Egg Hunt. The Board 
took no action. 

The Board next received the pool and community center report. Mr. Burke stated 
he had no proposals for the Board. He then referred to his handout, a copy of which is 
attached as Exhibit "C", which provides an accounting of all pool and community center 
expenditures over the winter months. Mr. Burke stated he was providing the accounting 
primarily for recordkeeping purposes. Director Green stated that she had received reports 
from residents that some of the tennis court lights were burned out. Mr. Burke stated he 
was not aware of multiple tennis court lights being burned out. He explained the tennis 
court lights were on timers and it was possible the lights were turned off and not burned 
out. Mr. Burke stated he would check all of the lights. 

Director Conklin stated the Board would next receive the general manager's report. 
Mr. Spoonts stated that he had discussed all items in his report, a copy of which is attached 
as Exhibit "D", with the Board during the April 13 work session. He stated he and Mr. 
Malish would meet with the contractor preparing a proposal for TVing the wastewater lines 
and he hoped to bring that proposal to the Board in May. Mr. Spoonts then discussed with 
the Board the repair to be made to Booster Pump Station #1 on Dallas Drive. Mr. Spoonts, 
Mr. Malish, and the Board discussed the likelihood that the transducer would need to be 
replaced, the pipes cleaned, and a port installed to repair the booster station. Mr. Malish 
estimated the cost to be approximately $5,00o.oo. The Board discussed the need to 
address this matter as soon as possible. Director Collins recommended a subcommittee be 
formed to address the matter and an amount not to exceed $7,500.00 be approved to 
address the repair. After discussion and upon motion by Director Conklin and second by 
Director Green, the Board unanimously approved appointment of a subcommittee 
comprised of Directors Collins and Jones to address the booster pump station repair and 
approved an amount not to exceed $7,500.00 to fund the repair. Mr. Spoonts then 
referred the Board to the proposed First Amendment to Management Services Agreement 
in the packet, a copy of which is attached as Exhibit "E". Mr. Flahive stated the 
amendment would extend the term of the current agreement through September 30, 2015, 
the day before the proposed new agreement would commence, so that there would be no 
lapse. Upon motion by Director Conklin and second by Director Jones, the Board 
unanimously approved the amendment as presented. Mr. Spoonts then referred the Board 
to the proposed Management Services Agreement in the packet, a copy of which is attached 
as Exhibit "F". He stated the proposed agreement, as discussed during the April 13 work 
session, provided an initial 5% increase in the monthly management fee, then up to a i.5% 
CPI increase in the monthly fee at the end of the first year and second year of the three year 
term. Upon motion by Director Conklin and second by Director Green, the Board 
unanimously approved the agreement as presented. Director Conklin then referred the 
Board to the proposed Pool Use Agreement with the Hurricane Swim Team for the summer 
of 2015, a copy of which is attached as Exhibit "G". He explained his changes to the 
agreement for the prior year, including different dates due to the change in the term of the 
school year, an increase in the time period for use by one hour, and updating the District's 
legal counsel contact information. Director Conklin stated the rental rate would remain 
the same as that for the prior year. Upon motion by Director Conklin and second by 

{W0653815.2} April 15, 2015 - Regular Meeting 
North Austin M.U.D. No. 1 



Director Green, the Board unanimously approved the agreement as presented. Director 
Conklin then asked Mr. Flahive if it was appropriate for the Board to approve write-offs 
presented by Mr. Spoonts during Monday work sessions. Mr. Flahive stated that it would 
be appropriate for the Board to take action relating to items because the agendas for the 
Monday work sessions expressly describes the general manager's report and proposals 
related thereto. 

Director Conklin stated the Board would then receive the bookkeeper's report, a 
copy of which is included behind tab no. 5 of the meeting packet. Ms. Bott stated she had 
been directed by the Board during the April 13 work session to hold two checks for 
consideration at the regular meeting. The first check was to Hines Pool & Spa in the 
amount of 40% of the price of the pool plaster repair. Ms. Bott and Director Conklin 
discussed the related check to Hines Pool & Spa in the amount of 10% of the price of the 
pool plaster repair, for retainage, would be considered in May. The second check was to 
Wells Branch MUD for payment of the District's share of the legal fees associated with the 
wastewater rate case. The Board then discussed the status of the wastewater rate case and 
Director Conklin directed Mr. Flahive to include a discussion and action item regarding the 
case on the May regular Board meeting agenda and to include in the packet the District's 
engagement letter with Randy Wilburn for legal representation in the case. Ms. Bott then 
discussed with the Board the ongoing issue with the City of Austin relating to errors in the 
beginning balance of the water and wastewater bill. She stated current charges had been 
correct for months, but the beginning balance had been adjusted numerous times and 
remained incorrect. Upon motion by Director Jones and second by Director Collins, the 
Board unanimously approved payment of the two checks held for consideration, but not 
the check to Hines Pool & Spa for 10% of the price of the pool plaster repair, for retainage, 
which would be considered in May. 

The next item to come before the Board was to review the budget and consider 
taking action on budget items. Director Conklin stated the item was discussed during the 
April 13 work session. He stated that the Board needed to identify the items that required 
action in the near term in order to fund the items from the 2014-2015 budget. Director 
Green asked about the status of the gazebo project. Mr. Spoon ts stated no action had been 
taken on that item. The Board then discussed the items that had been addressed. Director 
Jones stated the new signage needed to be purchased. Mr. Spoonts then stated that the 
dead tree and brush clearing needed to be performed and that the Grovedale Park pavilion 
project needed to be explored. Director Jones noted she had received requests for more 
park benches in the parks and along the trails. Director Conklin asked Mr. Burke to report 
on the status of the purchase of needed pool furniture. Mr. Burke stated he would order 
the pool furniture, which would likely cost about one-half of the budgeted cost, for delivery 
prior to the pool opening. Mr. Spoonts stated that the ice machine for the Community 
Center was another item identified in the budget. Mr. Burke responded that he did not 
believe there was much demand for the ice machine. The Board took no action. 

Director Conklin stated the Board would next review and consider taking action on 
the bond projects. Mr. Malish stated he was still waiting on the drainage study. He stated 
that one bond project that could be pursued in the near term was the booster pump station 
buildings. Mr. Malish stated the first step would be to select and engage an architect. He 
proposed the buildings be of the same architectural design as the Community Center. 

{W06538 l 5.2} April 15, 2015 - Regular Meeting 
North Austin M.U.D. No. 1 



Director Conklin stated he wanted the buildings to be of a quality that would last. Director 
Conklin directed Mr. Flahive to include this agenda item on the May regular Board meeting 
agenda. Mr. Spoonts stated that the fire hydrant repair item could be addressed. He 
stated that, if underground leaks were detected, they would be repaired, but bonnets alone 
would not be. Mr. Spoonts stated that he was waiting on the inspection report, noting that 
he would also obtain a bid for painting the fire hydrants after necessary repairs were 
performed. The Board then discussed with Mr. Spoonts the appropriate color(s) to paint 
the fire hydrants and determined the inspection report should address the issue. The 
Board took no action. 

The next item to come before the Board was to receive the engineer's report. Mr. 
Malish stated everything in his report, a copy of which is attached as Exhibit "H", was 
addressed during the April 13 work session. He stated the concrete fence on the Alliance 
Residential site had been constructed. Mr. Malish stated the next area for wastewater line 
TV inspection would be in the southern portion of the District. The Board took no action. 

Director Conklin stated the Board would next receive the attorney's report. Mr. 
Flahive referred the Board to the information from Build America Mutual Assurance 
Company in the packet and explained that the Board could vote in the director election. 
The Board declined to take action. Mr. F1ahive then referred the Board to the 
memorandum in the packet containing options for the delivery of meeting packets, a copy 
of which is attached as Exhibit "I". After discussion, the Board elected Option 2, 

providing for delivery of meeting packets to the Directors by hand-delivery and to the 
consultants by mail. 

The next item to come before the Board was to receive the restrictive covenants 
report. Mr. Flahive referred the Board to the proposed forms for the initial and final 
violation letters for use by the District's restrictive covenant enforcement services provider, 
copies of which are attached as Exhibit "J ". After discussion and upon motion by 
Director Conklin and second by Director Collins, the Board unanimously approved the 
form letters and directed Mr. Flahive to provide them to MILAJO Consulting for use. Mr. 
Flahive stated that the next item, the restrictive covenant enforcement matter for 13251 
Kerrville Folkway, would be placed on the May regular Board meeting agenda. 

The next item to come before the Board was future annexation, limited district 
conversion, and other City of Austin related issues, including the water and wastewater 
rate case. Director Conklin stated he had nothing new to report. The Board discussed 
email correspondence received from Randy Wilburn and Kalinda Howe relating to the 
Austin Energy article in the April 15, 2015, edition of the Austin American-Statesman. 
After discussion and upon motion by Director Conklin and second by Director Green, the 
Board unanimously voted not to join in any written correspondence relating to the article 
or the ongoing water and wastewater rate cases and to direct Mr. F1ahive to communicate 
the Board's action to Ms. Howe. 

Director Conklin stated the Board would next consider any other matters to come 
before the Board. Director Conklin stated he would contact Ms. Curfman to discuss 
establishing a standing agenda item for RCNA matters. Mr. Spoonts stated he was aware 
of some residents who desired to have a dog park located on the fire station tract. Director 

{W0653815.2} - 5 - April 15, 2015 - Regular Meeting 
North Austin M.U.D. No. 1 



Conklin stated there was no parking or trail access to the tract. The Board then discussed 
the potential impact of such use of the tract on adjacent property owners, as well as the 
small size of the tract. Mr. Burke stated a CPR class would be held at the Community 
Center from 9:00 a.m. to 1:00 p.m. on June 21 and invited the Board members to attend. 

{W0653815 .2} - 6-

Jo~es~S~ 
Board of Directors 

April 15, 2 015 - Regular Meeting 
North Austin M.U.D. No. 1 




